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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
NORTHERN DISTRICT OF OHIO

JOSEPH HOPKINS, on behalf of himself
and all others similarly situated
3327 E. 140th Street
Cleveland, OH 44120

CASE NO.:
JUDGE:

And
CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT
AND JURY DEMAND

MIGUEL FIGUEROA, on behalf of
himself and all others similarly situated
4028 Storer Avenue
Cleveland, OH 44109
And
NICOLE MANGLE, on behalf of herself
and all others similarly situated
24385 Garden Dr.
Cleveland, OH 44123
Plaintiffs,
vs.
ANHEUSER-BUSCH COMPANIES, LLC,
c/o Statutory Agent CT Corporation System
1300 East Ninth Street
Cleveland, OH 44114
Defendant.

Plaintiffs Joseph Hopkins, Miguel Figueroa, and Nicole Mangle ("Plaintiffs"), by and
through their attorneys, bring this action individually and on behalf of all other similarly situated
members of the public against Anheuser-Busch Companies, LLC.
compensatory damages, restitution, and equitable, injunctive and declaratory relief. Plaintiffs
allege, on information and belief except for information regarding their individual facts, as
follows:
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NATURE OF THE ACTION

1.

Defendant AB makes claims about the alcohol content of its malt beverages on its
labels in the State of Ohio.
claims are false in every instance and are based on its uniform corporate

policy of overstating the amount

s products. Using highly advanced

process control instrumentation and corporate protocols, AB can and does identify and control,
with great accuracy and precision, the exact alcohol content of each unit it sells, but nevertheless
intentionally misrepresents each such product as having a greater amount of alcohol than it
actually contains. By falsely representing the alcohol content of the products it sells to Ohio
residents, AB has violated Ohio

PARTIES, JURISDICTION AND VENUE
2.

The instant case is a class action brought by Plaintiffs Joseph Hopkins, Miguel

Figueroa, and Nicole Mangle, individually and on behalf of other similarly-situated consumers in
Ohio, arising out of AB

overstating the alcohol content of its

products.
3.
2005

This Court has original jurisdiction pursuant to the Class Action Fairness Act of
, 28 U.S.C. § 1332(d)(2). The matter in controversy, exclusive of interest and

costs, exceeds the sum or value of $5,000,000 and is a class action in which any member of a
class of plaintiffs is a citizen of a State different from any defendant.
4.

This Court has personal jurisdiction over AB because it is authorized to do

business and does business in Ohio; it has specifically produced, marketed and sold malt
beverages in Ohio, and has sufficient minimum contacts with this State and/or sufficiently and
purposefully avails itself to the markets of this State through its production, marketing and sales
within this State, to render the exercise of jurisdiction by this Court permissible.
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5.

Venue as to AB is proper in this Court pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1391 in that many

of the acts and transactions giving rise to this action occurred in this District and because AB:
a. Is authorized to conduct business in this District and has intentionally availed
itself of the laws and markets within this District through the production,
marketing and sales of alcoholic beverages in this District;
b. Does substantial business in this District; and
c. Is subject to personal jurisdiction in this District.
6.

At all relevant times, Plaintiff Joseph Hopkins resided and continues to reside in

the City of Cleveland, Cuyahoga County, Ohio. During the relevant time period, Hopkins
purchased

products

labels. Specifically, Hopkins regularly purchased multiple packs of Budweiser and Bud Ice
during the past fou
Budweiser and Bud Ice he purchased had a claim set forth on the packaging that the alcohol
content of that container was 5 percent and 5.5 percent, respectively, by volume. Hopkins has
since learned that these claims of 5 percent and 5.5 percent alcohol were in each case overstated.

representations were false.
Hopkins purchased malt beverages that had
less value than what he paid, and has accordingly suffered legally cognizable damages
proximately caused by Defendant s misconduct.
of Budweiser, Hopkins decided to stop purchasing it.
7.

At all relevant times, Plaintiff Miguel Figueroa resided and continues to reside in

the City of Cleveland, Cuyahoga County, Ohio. During the relevant time period, Figueroa
purchased

products

labels. Specifically, Figueroa regularly purchased multiple packs of Budweiser during the past
Eagle. Each container of Budweiser he purchased
had a claim set forth on the packaging that the alcohol content of that container was 5 percent by
3
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volume. Figueroa has since learned that these claims of 5 percent alcohol were in each case
overstated.

Figueroa

representations were false.

Figueroa purchased

malt beverages that had less value than what he paid, and has accordingly suffered legally
cognizable damages proximately caused by Defendant s misconduct. After learning the truth
decided to stop purchasing it.
8.

At all relevant times, Plaintiff Nicole Mangle resided and continues to reside in

the City of Cleveland, Cuyahoga County, Ohio. During the relevant time period, Mangle
purchased

products

labels. Specifically, Mangle regularly purchased multiple packs of Budweiser and Bud Light

of Budweiser and Bud Light Platinum she purchased had a claim set forth on the packaging that
the alcohol content of that container was 5 percent and 6 percent, respectively, by volume.
Mangle has since learned that these claims of 5 percent and 6 percent alcohol were in each case
ntage of alcohol into account in making her purchases

were false.

Mangle purchased malt beverages

that had less value than what she paid, and has accordingly suffered legally cognizable damages
proximately caused by Defendant s misconduct.
of Budweiser, Mangle decided to stop purchasing it.
9.

AB is a Delaware limited liability corporation, wholly owned and controlled by

Anheuser-Busch InBev SA/NV, a publicly-traded company (NYSE: BUD). Anheuser-Busch
InBev SA/NV was formed in November of 2008 following the merger of InBev and Anheuser
Busch. Following the merger, AB vigorously accelerated the deceptive practices described
below, sacrificing the quality products once produced by Anheuser-Busch in order to reduce
costs. AB

St. Louis, Missouri. AB is registered to do business
4
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in the state of Ohio, and in fact, has one of its thirteen breweries located in Columbus, Ohio. AB
manufactures, markets, and sells alcoholic beverages to millions of consumers throughout the
United States, including millions of consumers in Ohio and in this District.

FACTS
10.

AB possesses sophisticated process control technology that enables it to precisely

identify and control the exact alcohol content of malt beverages to within hundredths of one
percent (i.e. 01%). Because water is cheaper than alcohol, AB adds extra water to its finished
products to produce malt beverages that consistently have significantly lower alcohol content
than the percentage displayed on its labels. By doing so, AB is able to produce a significantly
higher number of units of beer from the same starting batch of ingredients. However, consumers

11.

There are no impediments

economic, practical or legal

to AB accurately

labeling its products to reflect their true alcohol content. Nevertheless, AB uniformly
misrepresents and overstates that content.
12.
at least the following products:

.
13.

AB

reasonable consumers who rely on

and allow AB to gain an unfair competitive advantage in violation of Ohio law.
A. AB Unlawful, Unfair and Fraudulent Business Practices
14.

Anheuser-Busch InBev SA/NV,

producer of alcoholic beverages. In 2011, its global production exceeded 10 billion gallons of
malt beverages, on which it generated gross profits of more than $22 billion. In the United States
alone, ABI operates 13 large scale breweries, producing over three billion gallons of malt
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beverages in 2011.1
i.
15.

The Brewing Process for Malt Beverages

AB processes each batch of malt beverages

,

meaning that certain key variables, such as alcohol content, are initially kept at specifications
above the desired final product.
16.

At the heart of any

involves yeast converting certain carbohydrates into ethanol (intoxicating alcohol to humans),
and CO2 (carbon dioxide for carbonation). It is the expensive and time-consuming fermentation
process that creates the alcohol content in the beverage, and it is this by-product, ethanol, which
creates demand for alcoholic malt beverages. Hence, the economic incentive
malt beverages.
ii.
17.

AB Deliberate Misrepresentations

Sometime prior to 2008, AB began using in-line alcohol measuring

instrumentation, known as Anton Paar meters technology which allows AB to measure the
alcohol content of malt beverages to within hundredths of one percent (i.e. + or - 0.01%).
18.

But AB does not use this precision technology, and resulting high accuracy, to

provide consumers with exactly what is on the labels; instead, AB uses its precise knowledge of
the alcohol content of its products to deceive consumers.
process the malt beverage undergoes before it is packaged, AB waters down its
products,

the total alcohol content to well below the percentage stated on its labels.

Specifically, AB uses its technological prowess to produce malt beverages in which the alcohol
content is consistently lower than the level it promises on its labels.
19.

If AB chose to, it could use its Anton Paar meters to target the exact alcohol

content of its finished products to conform to the representations on its labels. Conversely, since
AB knows the precise alcohol content of each of its products, it could conform its labels for each

1

See 2011 ABI Annual Report, p. 2, 8, 47.
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such product to accurately state that content. Instead, and even though AB knows the true
alcohol content of its products, it intentionally and falsely overstates the alcohol content of its
malt beverages. AB never intends for the malt beverage to possess the amount of alcohol that is
stated on the label. As a result,

are overcharged for watered-down beer and AB

is unjustly enriched by the additional volume it can sell.
20.
statutes prohibiting consumer deception. Moreover, AB is also subject to various specific
requirements for accuracy and honesty when claiming alcohol content of products sold to the
general public.
misrepresentations about the alcohol content of its malt beverages, violate Ohio
protection statutes.
CLASS ACTION ALLEGATIONS
21.

Pursuant to Federal Rules of Civil Procedure 23(a) and 23(b), Plaintiffs bring this

action individually and on behalf of all others similarly situated. Plaintiffs will seek certification
of the following class:
All consumers who purchased at retail for personal, family or
household purposes and not for re-sale,, within four years before
the date this suit was filed, one or more of the following
Anheuser-Busch Companies, LLC products at retail in the state
of Ohio for offKing Cobra

22.

Busch Ice

Natural Ice

Numerosity: AB enjoys a 47.7% market share of the sale of malt beverages in the

United States. Although the number of class members is not presently known, it is likely to be
comprised of millions of consumers throughout Ohio. The Class is certainly so numerous that
joinder of all members of the Class is impracticable.
23.

Commonality: As outlined below, common questions of law and fact exist as to

all members of the Class. Common questions of fact and law exist because, inter alia, Plaintiffs
7
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and all class members purchased AB
misrepresented as containing more alcohol than they actually contained.
24.

Adequacy of Representation: Plaintiffs will fairly and adequately protect the

interests of the members of the Class. Plaintiffs have retained highly competent and experienced
class action attorneys to represent their interests and that of the Class. Plaintiffs and their counsel
have the necessary financial resources to adequately and vigorously litigate this class action.
Plaintiffs have no adverse or antagonistic interests to those of the Class. Plaintiffs are willing and
prepared to serve the Court and the Class members in a representative capacity, with all of the
obligations and duties material thereto, and are determined to diligently discharge those duties by
vigorously seeking the maximum possible recovery for class members.
25.

Typicality:

claims of the members of the Class

because they purchased and consumed alcoholic beverages that were deliberately misrepresented
as containing more alcohol than they actually contained. Thus, Plaintiffs and class members
sustained the same injury arising out of AB
complained of herein. The injury of each class member was caused directly by AB
conduct in violation of law as alleged herein.
Rule 23(b) (3)
26.

This action is appropriate as a class action pursuant to Rule 23(b) (3) of the

Federal Rules of Civil Procedure.
27.

Common Questions of Law and Fact Predominate: The questions of law and

fact common to the members of the class predominate over any questions affecting only
individual members. These common questions include, but are not limited to:
a.
more alcohol than they in fact contained;
b. Whether AB deliberately, and as a matter of corporate policy, misrepresented
their products sold to class members as containing more alcohol than they
actually contained;
8
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c. Whether AB engaged in deceptive and unfair business practices related to its
representations about the alcohol content of the products it sold to Class
members;
d. Whether Plaintiffs and Class members are entitled to declaratory, injunctive
and/or equitable relief; and
e. Whether Plaintiffs and Class members are entitled to compensatory damages,
including actual and statutory damages plus interest thereon and/or monetary
restitution.
28.

Superiority: A class action is superior to other available methods for the fair and

efficient adjudication of the controversy, and will create a substantial benefit to both the public
and the courts in that:
a. Costs of prosecuting the action individually will vastly exceed the costs for
prosecuting the case as a class action;
b. Class certification will obviate the necessity of a multiplicity of claims;
c. It is desirable to concentrate the litigation of these claims in a single forum;
d. Unification of common questions of fact and law into a single proceeding
before this Court will reduce the likelihood of inconsistent rulings, opinions,
and decisions.
e. A class action is a superior means of fairly and efficiently resolving this
dispute. Given the complexity of the issues presented here, individual claims
are not sufficiently sizeable to attract the interest of highly able and dedicated
attorneys who will prosecute them on a contingency basis. A class action is
therefore essential to prevent a failure of justice.
29.

Plaintiffs are unaware of any difficulties that are likely to be encountered in the

management of this Class Action Complaint that would preclude its maintenance as a class
action.
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Rule 23(b) (2)
30.

This action is also appropriate as a class action pursuant to Rule 23(b)(2) of the

Federal Rules of Civil Procedure.
31.

Plaintiffs also seek class-wide injunctive and corresponding declaratory relief. AB

acted in a manner generally applicable to all class members by deliberately misrepresenting their
products as containing more alcohol than they actually contain.
32.

AB

s, if not enjoined, will subject Class members

and other members of the public to substantial continuing harm and will cause irreparable
injuries to class members who are misled and denied their rights.
FIRST CLAIM FOR RELIEF
Violations of the Ohio Consumer Sales Practices Act, 1345.01 et seq.
33.

Plaintiffs refer to and incorporate by reference all facts alleged in the preceding

paragraphs as though fully set forth herein.
34.

O.R.C. §1345.02(A) of the Ohio Consumer Sales Practices Act

prohibits any

OCPSA

unfair or deceptive act or practice in connection

with a consumer transaction.
35.

AB is a "supplier" because it is engaged in the business of effecting
, either directly or indirectly, by soliciting and selling goods and services to

consumers in Ohio for purposes that are primarily personal, family or household as those terms
are defined in O.R.C. Sections 1345.01(C) and (A) respectively.
36.
37.

(1)

O.R.C. §1345.02(B) specifically delineates the following acts or practices of a

the subject of a consumer transaction has sponsorship,
approval, performance characteristics, accessories, uses, or benefits that it does not

(2)
standard, quality, grad
10
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(5)
38.

construing division (A) of this

section, the court shall give due consideration and great weight to federal trade commission

he FTC has expressed great concern about the accurate labeling of malt beverages
with regard to alcohol content, in its Orders and comments.2
39.

As described in the preceding paragraphs, AB engaged in the unfair business

practice of deliberately manipulating the brewing process and producing malt beverages
knowing that their alcohol content is mislabeled. Moreover, AB intentionally misrepresented the
actual alcohol content of its products when offering them for sale within Ohio. AB intentionally
engaged in this conduct even though it was, and continues to be, feasible for AB to produce malt
beverages extremely close to the exact alcohol levels stated on its labels or to change its labels to
match the results of its production. In engaging in such conduct, AB unfairly obtained inflated
prices for its products, and increased its sales volume by adding more water to its products.
40.

AB

and

unscrupulous, and they violate fundamental policies of this State. Further, any justification for
AB

Plaintiffs and

Class members could not reasonably avoid the harm caused by AB
Assuming, arguendo

2

See In the Matter of Phusion Projects, LLC,, Agreement Containing Consent Order, 2011 WL
4606668, 112 F.T.C. 3084 (2011); Comments of the Staff of the Bureau of Consumer Protection,
the Bureau of Economics, and the Office of Policy Planning of the Federal Trade Commission,
Labeling and Advertising of Wines, Distilled Spirits and Malt Beverages, January 27, 2008; In
The Matter Of. Allied Domecq Spirits & Wine Americas, Inc., And Allied Domecq Spirits & Wine
USA, Inc. D.B.A. Hiram Walker, Decision and Order, Docket No. C-3858, March 5, 1999.
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those practices fall within the penumbra of such laws and a finding of unfairness can properly be
tethered to the public policies expressed therein.
41.

Thus, by selling to consumers within Ohio products in containers which

misrepresent the amount of the alcohol content of such products, AB committed deceptive
practices which violate O.R.C. § 1345.0(A) and (B) of the OCSPA.
42.

As discussed above, AB

violate, the FAAA and related regulations and statutes, see 27 U.S.C. § 201 et seq.; 27 C.F.R §
7.54 and 7.71.
43.

Consumers, including Plaintiffs, necessarily and reasonably relied on the labels

and advertisements for AB
targets of such representations. Plaintiffs have suffered injury in fact and lost money or property

44.

On information and belief, AB will continue to misrepresent the alcohol content

of its products in violation of law unless enjoined by this Court from doing so.
45.

As a result of the business practices described above, the OSCPA, § 1345.09(B)

and (D) entitles Plaintiffs and Class members, to an order enjoining such future conduct on the
part of AB and such other orders and judgments which may be necessary to restore to any person
in interest any money paid for AB
46.

attributable to AB

Plaintiffs and Class members reserve the right to allege other violations of law

which constitute other unlawful business acts or practices, as further investigation and discovery
warrants. Such conduct is ongoing and continues to this date.

SECOND CLAIM FOR RELIEF
Violations of the Codified Ordinances of Cleveland, COCO §641 et seq.
47.

Plaintiffs refer to and incorporate by reference all facts alleged in the preceding

paragraphs as though fully set forth herein.
12
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48.

prohibits any

omission or practice undertaken by a merchant which is false, deceptive, fraudulent, or

49.

AB is a "merchant"

it is a

ation and/or other legal entity. . . who regularly deals in real or personal
property, goods or services in a manner which results or is intended to result in consumer
transactions. Merchant includes but is not limited to a seller, lessor, manufacturer, his or her
assigns or successors. Merchant includes all other persons who are responsible for any act or

50.
51.

A large number of class transactions involving Plaintiffs and the Class members

occurred within the City of Cleveland making them subject to COCO.
52.

(e)

COCO §641.11 specifically delineates the following acts or practices of a

characteristics,
ingredients, uses, benefits or quantities that they do not have or that a person has a
sponsorship, approval, status, affiliation or connection that he or she does not

(g)

andard, quality or grade,

(h)

(q)

ng in any other act or practice which similarly creates a likelihood of

(s)
law, and rules and regulations promulgated under either State or federal law, and
decisions of the Federal Trade Commission, and Federal and State courts, relating
53.

In addition, COCO §653.02 states:
13
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No person, with intent to sell or in anywise dispose of goods or service, or
anything offered directly or indirectly to the public for sale or distribution . . . to
induce the public in any manner to enter into any obligation relating thereto,
shall make, publish, disseminate, circulate or place before the public . . . in the
City of Cleveland, an advertisement of any sort regarding goods, service or
representation so offered to the public, which contains any assertion,
representation or statement which is untrue, deceptive or misleading . . .
54.

As described in the preceding paragraphs, AB intentionally misrepresented the

actual alcohol content of its products when offering them for sale within Ohio.
55.

Thus, by selling to consumers within Ohio products in containers which

misrepresent the amount of the alcohol content of such products, AB committed deceptive
practices which violate COCO §641.11.
56.

Consumers, including Plaintiffs, necessarily and reasonably relied on the labels

and advertisements for AB
targets of such representations. Plaintiffs have suffered injury in fact and lost money or property

57.

On information and belief, AB will continue to misrepresent the alcohol content

of its products in violation of law unless enjoined by this Court from doing so.
58.

As a result of the business practices described above, the COCO §643.11(b)

entitles Plaintiffs and Class members, to an order enjoining such future conduct on the part of
AB and such other orders and judgments which may be necessary to restore to any person in
interest any money paid for AB
59.

attributable to AB

Plaintiffs and Class members reserve the right to allege other violations of law

which constitute other unlawful business acts or practices, as further investigation and discovery
warrants. Such conduct is ongoing and continues to this date.
FOURTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF
Breach of Implied Warranty of Merchantability
Ohio Uniform Commercial Code, O.R.C. § 1302.27
60.

Plaintiffs refer to and incorporate by reference all facts alleged in the preceding

paragraphs as though fully set forth herein.
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61.
above, bore promises or affirmations of fact on their containers or labels with respect to the
stated percentages of alcohol.

AB breached the implied warranty of merchantability

accompanying such transactions because Plaintiffs and class members did not receive goods that

Code, O.R.C. 1302.27(A) and (B)(6).
62.

Plaintiffs notified AB in writing of its breach of warranty, pursuant to O.R.C.

§1302.65, to give AB the opportunity to cure such breach. Plaintiffs sent this notice by certified
mail, return receipt requested, to AB

A copy of the letter is

attached as Exhibit A.
63.

AB has not cured the above breach of warranty. As a proximate result of this

breach of warranty by AB, Plaintiffs and the Class have suffered damages in an amount to be
determined at trial.
FIFTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF
Violation of Magnusson-Moss Warranty Act, 15 U.S.C.A. § 2301 et seq.
64.

Plaintiffs refer to and incorporate by reference all facts alleged in the preceding

paragraphs as though fully set forth herein.
65.

Plaintiffs and Class members are consumers as defined in 15 U.S.C. § 2301(3).

66.

AB is a supplier and warrantor as defined in 15 U.S.C. § 2301(4) and (5).

67.

15

U.S.C. § 2301(1).
68.

In connection with their sale of malt beverages, AB gave to Plaintiffs and all

Class members who purchased the malt beverages an implied warranty as defined in 15 U.S.C. §
2301(7); namely, the implied warranty of merchantability. Specifically, AB warranted that the
malt beverages would conform to the promises or affirmations of fact made on their containers
or labels. Because the malt beverages did not conform to the promises and affirmations of fact
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about alcohol content made on their containers or labels, AB breached the implied warranty of
merchantability.
69.
and Cosmetics Law.
70.

By reason of AB's breach of the implied warranty of merchantability, AB

proximately caused damage to Plaintiffs and the Class and is therefore liable to Plaintiffs and
Class members pursuant to 15 U.S.C. § 2310(d)(1), . Pursuant to 15 U.S.C. § 2310(d)(1),
P
breaches of implied warranty. In addition, pursuant to 15 U.S.C. § 2310(d)(2), Plaintiffs and the
Class are entitled to recover a sum equal to the aggregate amount of costs and expenses

reasonably incurred by Plaintiffs and the Class for and in connection with the commencement
and prosecution of this action.
71.

Pursuant to 15 U.S.C. § 2310(e), on behalf of themselves and the Class, Plaintiffs

notified AB in writing of its breach of warranty and violation of the MMWA to give AB the
opportunity to cure such breach and violation. Plaintiffs sent this notice by certified mail, return
registered agent for service of process. A copy of the letter is attached
as Exhibit A. AB has not cured its breach as to Plaintiffs or any other members of the Class.
SIXTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF
Fraudulent Misrepresentation
72.

Plaintiffs refer to and incorporate by reference all facts alleged in the preceding

paragraphs as though fully set forth herein.
73.

AB intentionally misrepresented the actual alcohol content of its products when

offering them for sale within Ohio.
74.

AB deliberately manipulated the brewing process in producing malt beverages

knowing that their alcohol content is mislabeled. AB intentionally engaged in this conduct even
though it was, and continues to be, feasible for AB to produce malt beverages extremely close to
16

Ý¿-»æ ïæïíó½ªóððìïíóÜÝÒ Ü±½ ýæ ï Ú·´»¼æ ðîñîêñïí ïé ±º ïçò Ð¿¹»×Ü ýæ ïé

the exact alcohol levels stated on its labels or to change its labels to match the results of its
production, and all such conduct was undertaken with the advanced authorization of officers,
directors and/or authorized agents of AB.
75.

tations as to the quality and content of its malt beverages and

members decision to purchase these AB products.
76.

AB made such misrepresentations with the intent of misleading Plaintiffs and the

class members to rely on such misrepresentations in their purchase decisions.
77.

Consumers, including Plaintiffs, necessarily and reasonably relied on the labels

and advertisements for AB

Plaintiffs, were among the intended

targets of such misrepresentations.
78.

As the proximate result, Plaintiffs have suffered injury in fact and lost money or

SEVENTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF
Unjust Enrichment
79.

Plaintiffs refer to and incorporate by reference all facts alleged in the preceding

paragraphs as though fully set forth herein.
80.

Plaintiffs and the Class members purchased AB products based on its

representations in advertising and on its labels regarding its alcohol content, and a portion of
such proceeds was received by AB, the manufacturer.
81.

AB has actual knowledge that it receives revenues as the result of AB products

purchases by consumers, like Plaintiffs and the class members.
82.

However, AB collected monies for the aforementioned AB brands based on it

providing such products with the alcohol content stated in their advertising and on the product
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labels, but it provided a lesser percentage of alcohol in these products than it represented and
consumers paid for.
83.

Thus Plaintiffs contend that AB has been unjustly enriched at the expense and to

the detriment of class members by collecting monies to which it is not entitled and has
wrongfully collected.
84.

Although it would be unjust for AB to retain the monies wrongfully collected, AB

has failed or refused to refund the amounts wrongfully collected and unlawfully seeks to collect
additional amounts to which it is not entitled.
PRAYER FOR RELIEF
WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs, individually and on behalf of the class, pray for an order:
a. Declaring this a class action pursuant to Rule 23 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure
on behalf of the proposed Class described herein and appointing Plaintiffs to serve as
ass;
b. Preliminarily and permanently enjoining Defendant from continuing to misrepresent the
alcohol content of its malt beverages, and from pursuing the above policies, acts and
practices related to such sales;
c. Requiring Defendant to fund a corrective advertising campaign in order to remedy its
wrongful and illegal conduct;
d. Awarding restitution of the monies Defendant wrongfully acquired by its wrongful and
illegal conduct;
e.
wrongful and illegal conduct;
f. Awarding compensatory damages, including actual and statutory damages, arising from

g. Awarding punitive damages as allowed by law;
h.

nses incurred in the course of
prosecuting this action;
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i. Awarding pre-judgment and post-judgment interest at the legal rate; and
j. For such other and further relief as the Court deems just and proper.
Respectfully Submitted,
/s/ Ronald I. Frederick
Ronald Frederick (#0063609)
Ronald Frederick & Associates, Co. L.P.A.
1370 Ontario St., Suite 1240
Cleveland, Ohio 44113
(216) 502-1055 (phone)
(216) 566-9400 (fax)
RonF@clevelandconsumerlaw.com
Attorneys for Plaintiffs and the Class
REQUEST FOR JURY TRIAL
Plaintiffs hereby demand a jury trial on all issues so triable.
/s/ Ronald I. Frederick
Ronald Frederick (#0063609)
Ronald Frederick & Associates, Co. L.P.A.
Attorneys for Plaintiffs and the Class
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